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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THEMEMBERS OF
XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OPINION

We have andited the accompanying IND AS financial statements of M/s XICON
Intemational Limited ("the Company '), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
?ﬂ?j, the Statement of Profit and Loss [!nclur:llnﬁ Ohther Cnmpreheui?e [umme} and the
Cash Flow Statement and Statement of C]:uuﬁea in Eq'uii:q for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given
tous, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements Aive the information ra:p:.ire& ]:rg the Actin
the manner so required and give a true and {air view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs of the
C-Dmpﬂ:n; as at March 31, 2025, and its profit and its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

BASIS OF OFINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specilied
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standarcds are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of cur report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued ]:nq the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules theveunder,
and we have fullilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics We believe that the andit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient n.udnppeo]:lﬂule to pu‘nvic]en];uuslu for our opinion.
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The Company has not mﬂfecfeﬂ'/’pm‘cfﬁm/ to overseas partics adgredating fo R:5214
lakhs out of 43357 lakhs and Rs 3873 out of 8947 lakhs respectively, which are
ouistanding for recnverg/paymeut for a period more than 3 gears as at 3052023
These amounts have remained outstanding beyond period stipulated under Foreign
Exchange Management Act{HEMA )

Ohar Opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

KEY AUDITMATIERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the IND AS financial statements of the current period These

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the linancial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters

We have determined the matters described below as to the key audit matters to be

communicated in our report,

Revenue Recognition under IND AS 115
Revenue from Contract with customers:
Fixed Price contracts

How our audit assessed by the key matter

The Cnm]:rnuq inter alia engage in Fixed-
price contracts, wherein, revenue is
recognised using the percentage of
Completion computed as per the input
Method based on t]:.e':nmpa.ng's-&nilmata of
contract costs (Refer Note 2h) to the
standalone financial statements)

'We identified revenue recognition of fixed
price contracts as a Key Audit Mattter since:
a. ltpertains to the major activity of the
company and the recognition of the
revenus dEpEni:la on third party
certification based on the invoices
raised, and dppr:wecl based on the

survey.

Application of thisstandard is
complex and it involve number of key
judgements and estimates mainly in
inl:lenﬁ.{'ljinﬁ, per[nrmnm:e Q]]llﬂﬂ.ﬁ.ﬂ]l
and recognition of revenue based on
the stage of completion of the
contract on certified invoices,

Chur andit procedure on revenue recognized
From {ixed price contracts includes:

# Obtained an understanding of the system

processes and controls implemented by

company for recmdtna and computing

revenue,

# With regards to information technology:

¢ Assessed the IT environment which the
Business system operates in and tested
the system controls over which the
revenue is Emﬂnha:l

* Tested IT controls over appropriateness of

cost and revenue reports generated by
the system.

* Tested controls pertaining to allocation
of resources and budgeting systems which
prevent unauthorized recording or changes|
to costs incurred and controls relating to
the estimation of contract costs required to

mm]:llete the respective projects.

Conttnuation Sheet.........
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS
REPORT THEREON

The Companys board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board's
Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our mpﬂmi]:l]:ltq is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated

li, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

MANAGEMENTS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(0) of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial perormance including Other Comprehensive Income cash flows and changes in
Equuity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India including the Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for saleguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating eflectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS
linancial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ahility to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also respensible for

overseeing the Company s linancial reporting process.

Continuation Sheet........
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AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITY

Our cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
statemenis as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an anditors report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an andit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatemenis can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit We also:

* Identily and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sulficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
andit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 14303):1) of
the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal {inancial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of
acconnting and, based on the audit evidence chtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in cur anditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the andit evidence obtained up to
the date of cur auditor’s report However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

Continuation Sheet.........
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in Financial Statement that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Financial Statement may be influence. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in L. Planning the scope of our Audit work
and in evaluating the result of cur work and IL To evaluate the elfect of any identified
misstatement in the Financial Statements,

We communicaie with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with goverance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related m[egumﬂx. From the matters communicated
with those :ﬂl-qu,ed with Aovernance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements ol the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our anditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes pu]:]ic disclosure about the matter or when, in Extreme]g rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report

because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonakbly be expected to sutweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

L As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order’),
issued ]Dq the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section {ﬂ:l of section
145 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A statement on the
matters specitied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of mfknmlﬂ&&&ﬂndhﬂ]lﬂfw&mne:mfmtﬁzpummﬂn{m
audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company sofar as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other
Comprehensive Income and the Cash Flow Statement and Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 incdluding [nd AS;
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Om the basis of the writien representations received from the directors as on
Mmchil.m*takenﬂnwdhq the Board of Directors, none of the
diractnnisdiaquuhﬂeﬂmmh{uchij.]mmLﬂ{uﬂuppcﬂnledmu
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in Annexure B

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Rapm't in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Compantes (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best ol our information and according to the
explanations given to us

l.lll,l The Eampﬂng]lasdu:ﬂumcltheimpuztﬂf pem]inﬁ litigations on its
tinancial position in its Standalone Financial Statements.

(i)  The Company has did not have any long—term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable
i.m

(iiil = There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company,

liv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by ﬂ:u‘:c-nmpung to or in any other persons
or entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (Ultimate
Beneliciaries’) ]:rq or on behalf of the Compqng or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behall of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

ﬂ}} The Muna&em:!nt has rEpreuEﬂiec] H:mt, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the
Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(‘Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identilied in any manner
whatsoever (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) by or on behalf of the

Funding Parties or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Comitnuation Sheet.........
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{c) Based on the audit procedures perdormed that have been
considered reasonable and appropriate in the crcumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub—clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11{e) contain any
material mis-statement.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors Report in
accordance with the requirementuu{ Section ig?ﬂﬁ]u{ IJ:EAct,mumendeﬂ.
In cur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
E:plannﬁnnu Ailven to us, the managerial remuneration pai& or prmdded fcurhq
the company during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197(16) of the Act.

i) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining
books of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit ]nﬂ} facility is applicable to the Company with effect from
April 1,2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11{g) of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the linancial year ended March
31,2025

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATESLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No, 100420W

Shabbir 5 Bagasrawala

Partner

Membership No. 039865

UDIN: 23050860BGWXIM2330
P]nmu:[Siﬁuu{'uJecHum]:ni

Date: 30,/00,/2023
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Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirement’ of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended March 31,2023, we report the following;

1) a) (A)The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;

(B) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets,

(b} The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the
management annually, which our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the company and nature of its business. Pursuant to the program, the
Property, Plant and Equipment has not been physically verified by the
management during the year and no material discrepancies between the books
records and the Property, Plant and Equipment have been noticed

(c) According to the inlormation and explanations given to us the records
mmlnedbqusauﬂbuﬂdmﬂmmminnﬂmn[th&[em&ee&ﬁ'ﬂﬂe
building that have been taken on lease and otherwise and disclosed as
Property, Plant & Equipment in financial statements, the lease agreement &
title deed are in the name of the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records
examined hq us, the Company has not revalued its Pmpﬂhg, Plant and
Eequipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during

t]!E 'I-]E'ﬂ.l'.

(e} According to the information and explanations given to us, the records
examined by us no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the
company for holding any Benami property under the “Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1088 and Rules made thereunder.

9 (a) According to the information and explanations given to us the inventory has
been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. According to the
information and Er&anaﬂnm&i‘m fo us and as examined by us, no material
discrepancies of 10% or more in the agaregate for each class of inventory was
noticed on physical verification of stocks by the management as compared to
book records on such verification.

Unit No. 209/210, IMIMA Tower, Off Link Road, Behind Infiniti
: : : Infiniti Mall, Malad e
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by us, fL.ECDmpﬂ.‘n‘t] has not been sanctioned working capital limits
in excess of Rs. D croves, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the

basis of security of current assets at any point of time during the year are in
agreement wit the books of accounts of the company except minor variance as

stnted]:aluw:
Stmo | Particulars | As  per | As  per | Dillerence | Reason

Books Bank
1 Stack 64516 | 64516 0.00 Not Applicable
] Debtors 06624 | 215812 (O188) - r Note no 1 (a
(3 Creditors | 10000 | 10000 0.00 Refer Note no 1(c)

Note No 1 : The variance in Debtors & Creditors as per submitted stock statement
to the bank is due to the lollowing reasons:
a. Provision for ECL of Rs 5750 in the Books.
b Bad Debts - Balance Written off in books of Rs 3440 Lalhs
e Note No 19 - Trade Payables includes Creditors for Expenses, Contractors,
Sun-contractors, Professional, Consumahles, Rent, Transporters & Others

According to information and explanation given to us and the records examined
by us the company has not made investments in nor provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited
liahility partnerships or other parties covered in the register required under
section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, paragraph e ':Iil} [ﬂ] to ﬁ} of
the order is not app].im]:]e_

According to information and explanation given to us and the records examined
by us the company has neither made any investments nor has it given loans or
provided any guarantee or security as specified under section 183 of the
Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) and the company has not provided any security
nxsp-eci.{iedunder.uecﬁnn 186 of the Act. Further in our opinion ﬂ.u.d-&m::rdinﬂ to
the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied with the
provisions of section 18D and 180 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans,
investments, guarantees, and security.

[ our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and
the records examined by us, the company has not accepted any deposits or
amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public and accordingly
paragraph 3 (v) of the order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the infermation and explanations given to us and
ﬁemﬂsmedbquﬁemdnmdmmrﬂ:hﬂmlm
speciiied by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the
Act in respect of the activities carried on by the company.

Continuation Sheet.........
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(a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally
rl.'-_'ﬂulur in depuu[tinﬁ u.nd.i.upute::l statuton dues Inclur:]lna Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs,
Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the
appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to
us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at
March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date on when they
become payable except the service tax of Rs. 27124/ -

(k) ﬁl:nnn:ling to the information and eq:]unnl:lnuu Alven to us, no u:nrlluputed
amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a
period ol more than six months from the date on when they become payable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and
the records examined by us, there are no such transactions which are not recorded
in thebnnhc{umﬂuniundhnmbeenmndmednrﬂlﬂm&mhmmeduﬁnﬂ
the year in the tax assessments under the [ncome Tax Act, 1961

{a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us
and the records examined by us, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment
ol loans or other ]:rmrcrwi.nﬁa in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us
and the recurdue:nmined]:q us themmpa.ng Luapp]ledthe term loans for the
Puross for which the loans were obtained.

(d} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us
and the vecords examined by us, no funds raised on short term basis have been
utilim&fm]nn&tﬂrmpmm

(e) In cur opinion and u.cmtﬂlua, to the information and E:p]nnntinm given to us
and the records examined by us, the Company has not taken amy funds from any

entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures.

{ﬂ [n our opinion and ac:cofc]ln,g to the information and explanations fiven to us
and the records examined by us, the Company has not raised any loans during the
year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate

companies.

Continuation Sheet.........
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ID'] [u’ Based upon the andit pmu:usdurﬂ pe_rfl:mnet:l and the information and
explanations given by the management, the company has not raised moneys by
way of initial public olfer or further public offer including debt instruments and
tem[mmﬁmﬂiu&lq,ﬁepmﬂdmnfdmj{ﬂnfthenrdmmnﬁ
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made
private placement of shares or debenture during the year and hence compliance
with the requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013

does not arise.

) (a) J‘!'L-Dcﬂrr:]]nﬂ, to the information and explnmtil:ru: given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, we report that no fraud by the
Company or on the company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of ﬂiec::lmpu.ug, no report under sub-Section [19]13:[
Section 143 of the Companies Act has been {iled by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 with the
Central Government.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, no whistle-blower complaints has
been received duﬁnﬂ the year ]:1_] the Cumpany-ﬁﬂcnrﬂinglq, p.:m:ﬂ,mph > [ler::!
of the order 1s not applicable.

12)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidlli{:'ampanq nnd-nl:u:rf]m&lg,pumﬂ.m‘p]lj{:uﬂuf the order is not applicable to
the Company.

13) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act Where applicable, the
details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required]:q ﬂ:e-n‘ppllmi:]enmmmtinﬁ standards.

14) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company the company has an internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of its business

(b) The Company has considered the report of the internal auditor for the period
under the Audit No Adverse remark has been notice in the report given by the
Internal Auditor.

Continuation Sheet.........
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13)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based en our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with direciors or persons connected with them. Accordingly,
paragraph xv) of the order is not applicable.

16) (a) According to the information and explanations diven to us and based en cur
Exnmjmtiunnfﬂiermdsn{ﬂiemmpung,ﬂmmmpnm; is not qu'ni.l'edtn]:la
registered under section 49-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934,

{b}ﬂmﬂjnﬁ to the information and explanations given tous and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the Company has not conducted any
Neon-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate
of Registration (COR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of
India Act 1954,

(c) !!Lr_'mrdiuﬂ to the information and a:planuﬂnuﬂiven tous and based on our
examination of the records of the mmpaug,ﬂm Cﬂm]]ﬂ.'ﬂ.'l}' the Com'[nug isnota
Core lnvestment Company (CIC) as delined under the Regulations by the Reserve
Bank of India.

{d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the company has no CIC as part of the
Group

I7)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the companty, the Ecmpunu has not incurred cash
losses in the Financial Year and in the immediately preceding {inancial year.

18) ﬁmnrd:lna to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, there has not been any resignation of
the statutory anditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3xviii) of the Order is
not applicakble.,

19) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of ﬁlemm]:lu.nq and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates ol realization ol linancial assets and pagment of
linancial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the
auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of
opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as
and when they fall due wil:]:iudpe:iudufnneqeu: from the balance sheet date.
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither fdive any guarantee nor anmy that all
liahilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

Continuation Sheet.........
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20)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the mmpﬂ.nq.mtimmﬂl thECumPnniEEAl:tiu nod
applicu]:rle to the COMPAn, m:-mrc]in&]-g roporting under clause [Jl'-‘l]'nf the order is
not applicable,

2}  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, there have been no gualifications or
adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Aunditor's Report)
Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial

statements.

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATESLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 109420W

artner
Membership No. 030865

UDIN: 23030865BCWXIM2330
Place of Signature: Mumbai

Date: 30,/00,/2023

Unit No. 209/210, LIMIMA Tower, Off Link Road, Behind Infiniti Mall, Malad (W), Mumbai - 400 064.
Tel.- 022 4014 4319 / 9152732408 « CIN No. AAC - 2949 » shabbir.rita@snrllp.com » www.snrllp.com



habbir @ Diita Hovciates LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

ANNEXUREB
REPORT ON INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause l:i} of sub-section 3 of Section 143
of The Companies Act, Eﬂfjf‘ﬂm M"]

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s XICON
International Limited ('the Company’) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our aundit
of the IND AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENTS RESPONSILILITY FOR INTERNAL INANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company's management is vesponsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria
established ]:n; the Cnmpu.nq mmlﬂednﬁ the essential components ol intemal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intermal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued, by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of a&equu’ce internal financial
controls that were operating elfectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the saleguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013,

AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsthility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over linancial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note) and the Standards en Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
presm‘tbed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2003, to the extent n.pp'.imb]e to
an audit of internal financial contrals, both nppllm]::le to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued i:g the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to cbtain reasocnable assurance about whether -ur:].equu’r.e
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated elfectively in all material respects.

Unit No. 209/210, IIMIMA Tower, Off Link Road, Behind Infiniti Mall, Malad (W), Mumbai - 400 064.
Tel.: 022 4014 4319 / 9152732408 « CIN No. AAC - 2949 « shabbir rita@snrllp.com » www.snrilp.com
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Chartered Accountants

Ohr audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial conirols system over linancial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of interal financial controls over financial reporting included
oblaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating etfectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or ervor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sulficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our andit opinion on the Cﬂmpﬂnq.: internal financial controls system

over financial reporting,

A companys internal financial control over linanclal reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of linancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that

. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
rellect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company,

2 Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of flinancial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are ]::-Ein.a
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the ::nmpung; assets that could have a
material effect on the linancial statements.

Iuhessnt Limttations of Internal Financial Comirls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the pmsil:i]:ltg of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or frand may oocur and not be detected Also,
projections of any evaluation of the intemal financial controls over linancial reporting to
future period are subject to the risk that the intemal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate becanse of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
cump]iunuemﬂlﬂlepnljzieumpn:nedummgdeteﬂmnte.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal {inancial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporling were operating ellectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATESLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Reaiu:tml:luu No. 100420W

Membership No. 030865

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date-30,/05,/2025

UDIN: 23030865 BGWXIM2330

Unit No. 209/210, IIMIMA Tower, Off Link Road, Behind Infiniti Mall, Malad (W), Mumbai - 400 064.
Tel. : 022 4014 4319 / 9152732408 » CIN No. AAC - 2949 « shabbir.rita@snrllp.com » www,snrllp.com
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XICON INTERNATIOMAL LIMITED
Balanca Sheet as at March 31, 2023
{Amount in Lakhs)

Parsiculars Mote No. . sl
March 3;‘ 2023 March 31, 2022
ALTLETS
Non-current asselbs
(2] Prasecty, piant and eoutomant 3 165.74 178.28
13} Dther Intancible Assets 4 070 .44
gy Fingngal Amsets
1) [nvestments 5 5.97 834
{d} Defered Tax Assets [ 2247 45.03
1) Dt Nom-Cufmant Assals 7 16.57 7.51
Tatal Non-current Asscks 211.85 3‘1-0‘?:]
Current Assels
[a} Imventories g 645,16 316.68
[B) Finarcial Assets
(i} Trade receivables 9 2,066,24 1, 788,56
(i) Cash and cash equivaelents in 1.94 16.68
i) Other bank balances 11 104.58 lez
(I} Others Financial Assets iz 24.30 4522
T2} Deker Carmeal ARSETs 13 554.67 418.16
Totai Current Assels 3,396.89 2.621.33
TOTAL ASSETS 3,608.33 2,862.23
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
ra} Eouby Share caokal 14 309.16 09,16
bl Other Eguity 15 L0602 477.25
Total Equity 81518 TEG.41
’ LIABILITIES
Man-current Liakilides
{2} Provisions 16 417 541
Total Nen-current liabilities 4,17 541
Current llabilltles
{a) Financla! Lizbilties
[i) Barronwiings 17 1,024.42 564.33
{1 Trade pavatles 8
Doe to Micro &9d Sméald Enterprides 5.20 35.52
Dua ko Ochers 1,335.36 1,203 B4
{iE) Other fin&ncial RabilXiay 13 7R.26 5B.57
{e) Other current Habiltes 20 338.85 149,12
ll'l:'l Prorisions 21 1.05 T.56
(d) Current Tax Liabiigies{Met) 5.92 2133
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,7T8R.97 2,070.92
TOTAL LLABILITIES 2, 2,075.83
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,608.33 285223
Sow accompanying notes 1 to 61 forming part of the
financial statamants
In terms of cur recarn attachad,
For and on behalf of the Board of D
Far SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP -
P bt~
HEMANT K TALAPADATUR V. G. MUEUND
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
CEN Mo : 03741551 DIN Mo, 0273B633
Place : Mumbal
Dete - 30th Hay 2033




XICOM INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the yvear ended March 31, 2023
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[Amount in Lakhs)

PARTMER
MMEMBERSHIP NO. 039865

Place : Mumbal
Date : 30th May 2023

Note Year endad Year ended
T No. | March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
TNCOME
1 | Revenue from Operations 2 1,648.39 3,267 .44
it | Other income 23 153.34 14,99
7 [Total Income (I+11) 2/001.74 3,282.43
IV |EXPENSES
() Cost of Materials Consurned 24 493.31 147053
(b} Purchases of Stodk-in-Trade 25 98,83 11264
{c} Changes in inventordes of finshed goods, Stock-in-Trade and wark-in-progress 26 {110.63) {B.E.EE:Ir
(d}) Manufacturing costs 27 T71.34 1,132.49
(&) Employes Benefits Expense 28 155.50 227.07
{F) Finance Costs 29 111.25 85,00
{0} Depredation and Amortisation Expense 3 10,25 2039
[h) Dther Expensas k| 305.05 324,40
[Total expenses 1,994,858 3,144,287
W | Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (III-IV) 56,84 13816
i | Exceptional Items i -
VIl |Fﬁtmnss} before tax 56,84 138.16
WILI| Tax expense
{a) Current Tax 8,51 q4%.50
(b) Daferred Tax 21,53 {1.80)
Tax Adjustment of Earlier Years - =
MAT Credit
Total Tax Expense 31.04 4218
1%, [Profit [loss] for Ehe year (A) £5.80 95.98
¥ |Other Comprahensive Income k71
A, Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or logs :
i) Rermeasarement [gain/lass)] of net defined bepelt labiiy 7.38 040
{ii) Effect [gain/{loss]] of measuring equity instrumends at Fair Value through Other
|Comprehensive Income (FYTOCT) (3.37) (1.73)
(if) Income taat on above
B. Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
{1} Fair Value changes on Derivathves designated as Cash Flow Hedges
ii) Incame tax an abave . {1.04 0.37
Total Other Comprehensive Income (B) 2.97 {0.56)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (A)+1B) 16,77 D502
Paid up Equity Share Capital 309.16 30516
Face Value of Equity Share Capital 10.00 10.00
Eaming Per Equity Shane of R, 10f- each
Basic (in 1) 0.83 3.10
Diluted [ in % ) 0.83 3.10
See accompanying notes 1 to 61 forming part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached.
For SHABBIR E RITA ASSOCTATES LLP For and on behalf of the Board rectors
CHARTERED ACCOUNT, W
HEMANT K TALAPADATUR V. G. MUKUND
i DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
ABBIR 5 BAGASRAWALA DTN Mo : 02741658 DIN Mo, 02738533

Place : Mumbsai
Date : 30ch May 2023
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XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED Elcnn
= Sttt
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended Manch 31, 2023
. BTy BRane Caoin

LRanowet In Lykhg)
Particulirs Ampgnt
Dalanica i ot gl 1, 1022 UL
i Charagi n Eguity Shine Capital durng e pasr .
Baignce a3 ol March 31, 1911 IR
ik Crangues i BTy Showe Capd cunng Hhe wead
‘Rabance as ot Manch 31, 2013 309,148
0. C&her Bauity
LET o HTT L U
Takal
At et ired Ingtremeniz
Earsings General Reserve) Capfial Reserve | ponagh 061
Batance o o dped 1, 224 wen o i8]
Prof. for me: Ferod 5E5E i s
Fai valwaion of jeetimen X T
Prige Peragd dad ey x E =
‘Detapr Cornprahusagion [raneme o the wear, M of [rgome Tad
Larins e o —
Balance a5 an Farch 31, 3122 ﬂ 72l Zisl nl
RalanoE ST A 3, 10T muus o1 713 %)
Proitt for the geriad 3580 " -
IPair Waluatien of Menaitment i = " F
Friar Pericd Adjusmang B N . F &
it Comiprahenghae brogmag dor the yoear, ned of 8o tas .48 a7
(T R EAN s .
Balynoes pr o1 Moo 33, 1013 42178 .81 T8 0800
L ek o o PESG MR
For and o pehsil of the Boars of Dimcsoer|
-
Par SHADDIR & RITA e
|cranrenen LT ey
FIRM'S REG. W
HEHANTH TR - BIRECTOR]
O Mo 1 B DEEE




XIO0M INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement for the vear ended 31st March, 2023
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Farticulars

YUAr efaded
X1zt March, 1033

e ERC
Vist Mach, 2033

. Cas™ flowr Ti0M Operating dctivilies
hiet Aol Defore gam
.-
Beprecaton prd amorisiion
Apesgn I e
Extracrdinary dem
Araticdtios af ihdre Asue expenses and disooutt o ShEres
(Profit]) [ oy as gale | wete off of pmty
ey Compribarkivg [nooems
Fina~ae aoms
DrbEres? EEn o
Dewicend Fnoome
Ko o on sede of irvestments:

Lesin;
AT ST
Inbprast in 0]
Dbt Encere

Dperaing peofit bafore wearking cagital changes

Chiinges in working caofial;
Aot for (increese] J decrease Iy opering st
Irwirtgme

Trauke nacersables

St i lRal and advanies
i Franead finaty

Céhier pOE-CLHTEAL SRGEE
Long-ierm e and advanoes
Diher cument aepels

il hasieniin dor incregne | [decragse) in opemiing Sabilties:
Trade parpatie

Dther firancial lahites

this curmast s

Current kax izbiites:

Thort-term provisions

Long-ferm orowisons

Cash generater hom operTions
T Pald
Entragsniniiary dem

Met caxsh Now fram | (esed in} operating acthities (&)

B

13816

s
(a5
[i 1]
.60
1]
(L33}
1]
a4
=]
4.0 e

130
{137]
0.co {083

363
£1.73%
.03 [E55){

{EN651) (e T F |

5912

{ii.6)
1.4
a02

(5.5
£.35
oo

[t F] [252.17}

TLIL
19,68

LERED

(1541}
(&51p
[1.349) 257,28

[aa7.139|

150.83
5682
13329
R15
2l
a7 14

2E5.11
AL8%)

IIEDE

"B, Cach N frem iswasting activiting

Met cash Now fram |/ (uied o) investing activities (5]

r1zam)
L7T
ILEy
569

|

T Cash Now from RREALING Betivitins
Proceeds from lsue of Shanes

Frocesds from borowings

Irnterme mpene

Mt eakh flow fram | (esesd =) Ansncing sctivities (C)

Mit increass [ (decreass) in Cawh and cash equivalents {&=B+C)
Crgh andl cach equiwalens at the Beginmng of the yaar
Effpct of wechangs o BSEnOes o resiEment of fvesn sy Cagh 56 Gk SSubalent

EE s Eiginﬁag IE :

(14.75)|

NOTES TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOSR THE YEAR ENBED 315T MARCH-2023
LCash pndd Cash Equivalents indhude :

Carsh an Hangl

Enlanes with Bank

HEMANT KT.

o

TUR -~ DIRECTOR
H Mo: 02741651

¥. 6. HUNUND - DIRECTOR
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XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

i CORPORATE INFORMATION

X¥icon International Limited (“the Compamy™) & & public limited Company Incorporated and domacied in India and has its
registered office in 283-287, F wing, Solars - I, Saki vihar road, Andheri (Bast) Mumbai - 400 072. The company is engaged
in the business of providing products and services to infrastructure projects in the field of electric heat tracing and turnkey
mchanical and ehecirical projects for captive power plants and oil based industries. It covers Balance Plant Bguipment for
DG sets, It also carries out thermal insulation works and executes electrical distribution jobs.

The Finandal Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 are approved for issue by the Company Board of Directors on
30th Mav 2023

2 SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 a Basis of preparation of financial statements:

The finandial statements have been prepared In accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical
cost comvention on the accrual basis and on the basis of accounting principle of a going concern in accordance with generally
acceptad accounting principles [GAAP) except for certain instruments which are measured at Tair values.

The Ind AS ane presented under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and relevent amendments Rules issued thereafter,

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newdy issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires & change in the accounting palicy hitherto in use,

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee and all values zre stated in Rs. Lakhs or decimal thereof, except
when otherwise indicated. Wherever the amount represents 0" {2ero), value construes less than Rupess five hundred.

b Functional and presentation curmency
Items included in the financial statements of Company are measured using the currency of the primary eoonoemic

ervironment in which the Compamy operates (“the functional currency™). Indian rupee is the functional currency of the
Cormpany.

2.2 Use of estimates:

The preparation of finandal statements in conformity of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting palicies and the reporied amounts of assets, liabilities, the dediosures
ol contingent &ssets and contingent liabilties at the date of financial statements, income and expenses during the period.
Acuml results may differ from these estimates, Estimates and underlying assumptions &e reviewed on an ongoing basis,
Revisions o accounting estimates are recognized in the pariod in which the estimates are revisad and in future periods which
are affectad.

Application of accounting poficies that require critical accounting estimates and assumption having the most sionificant effect
on the amounts recognised in the finandal staterents ane:

Valuation of financial instruments

Useful life of property, plant and eguipment
Actuarial gainfloss on emplovee benefit plans
Provisions

23 Current wersus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and lisbilities in the balance sheet basad on ourrent) non-current classification in socondancs
with Divigion 1T of Schedule [11 of The Companies Act, 2013, An assat is treated as current when it is:

- Expacted to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating oycle

- Held primarity Tor the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reparting period, o

- Cish of cash eguivalent unless restricted from being exchanged ar used to settle a liabiity for at least twelve months after
tie reporting period.

Al other assets are dassified as non-current.

& Bability is current when:
= It is expacted to be settied in normal operating cyde
= It is hald primarily for the purpose of trading
It is due to be settled within twehe months after the reparting perod, o
ere |5 o uncondtional fght to defer the settlernent of the lisbilty for at beast twelve months after the
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All gther liabilides are classifien as ran-currant,

Deferred taw assels and liaodities are ciassified as non-current assets and Labilities.

The operating cyde s the time between the acguisition of asseis for processing and thelr realization in cash and cash
equivalents, The Company has identified twelve months as its aperating oycle.

2.4 Fair value measurement

Fair walue Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or pald to transfer a llability in an orderly transaction bebwesn
market participants 2t the measurement dabe, The fair value measurement is basad on the presemption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liablity takes pface either:

In the principal market for the asset or Eabllity, o

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantagecous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be acoessible by the Company,

The fair valume of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would wse when pricing
the agset or Eabllity, assuming that market participants act in their econamic best interest.

A fair value messurement of & non-financial asset takes nto account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
banefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling It to anather market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use,

The Company wuses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the droumstances and for which suffident data are available
to measwe fair value, maximizing the wse of relevant obsanvable inputs and minimizing the u=e of unobsansaiie inputs.

All assets and liabdties for which Tair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements &re categorized within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measuwrement as
a whole:

Leval | - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or Kabllities

Lewel 2 - Valieation techniques for which the lowest leved input that is significant to the fair vaiue
masurernent is directly or indirectly cbsarvabla

Leval 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measunement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial staternents on & recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level
infait that Is significant to the falr value measurement as 2 whaie) at the end of each reporting period.

The Coempany's Management determines the policles and procedures for bath recurring falr value measurement, such as
darivative instruments and unquated financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as
assets held for aestribution i discontinued operations,

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabiithes which are reguired to
= remeasured or re-assessed as per the Compamy's accounting policies. For this analysis, the Management wverifies the
major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information n the valuation comgputation to contracts and other
relevant documents,

The Management also compares the change in the falr value of each asset and liahility with relevant external sources to
determine whether the change is reasonable,

Far the purpose of fair valee disdosures, the Company has determined dasses of assefs and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the assat o lability and the level of the fair value hierarchy a5 explained abave.

15 Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less acoumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses i any.
Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress cost indude expenditure that i directly atfributable to the

i of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labowr and any other costs
directly atiributable to bringing the asset o a working condition for s intended use, and the costs of dismantling and
remgving the ltems and restoring the site on which they are lecated, Purchased software that s integral to the functionality
of the refated equipment is capitalized as part of that equipmeant.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful fves, they are acocounted for as separate items
{major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified
a5 capltal advances under other non-curent assets and the cost of assets not ready to use before such date are disclosed
under "Capital work-in-progress’. Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and eguipment & capitalized oaly when
it iz probable that future economic benafits associated with these will Now to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The cost and related accumulated depraciation are eiminated from the financial statements upon sale or
"“: sment of the asset and the resultant gains or Insses are recogrized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.




Subseouent Cost

The cost of replacing part of 21 item of progerty, plant and equipment & recognized in the carrying amount of the item if it is
probable that the future economic benefts embodied with these will fow o the Company and its cost can be measured
refiably, The carmying ameunt of the replaced part ts de-recognized and charged to the staterment of Profit and Loss. All other
oS are recagnized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and whean incurred,

Depreciation:
Depreciation on property plant & equipments is calculated on Written Down Valee method over the useful e as specified by
Schedule 1T to the Companies Act, 2013

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and eguipment are reviewed at each financial
vear end and adiusted proscectively. if aoorooriate.

Daerecognition of assets

An Bem of property plant & equipment and any significant part initizlly recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from s use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is
included in the income statement when the asset Is derecognized.

2.6 Intanalble assets
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company, which have finite useful lives, are measured at cost less accumulated
amartisation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the intangible assst.

Subseauent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized anly when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specfic asset to
which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on Internally generated goodwill and brands, are recognized in
profit or loss as incurred.

Intangibie ascels being computer software ks amortized over a period of three years for which the company expect the
benefits to accrue,

Derecognition of assets

An item of property plant & equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is
included in the incomes statement when the asset is derecognized,

.7 Revenue recognition:

Revenue from contracts with customer s recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitied in exchange for those goods or
SETViCes

Ind AS 115 "Revenue from contracts with Customers” provides a control-based revenue recognition model and provides a
five step application approach to be foliowed for revenue recognition.

A) Identify the contract(s) with customer;

8} ldentify the performance obligations;

C) Determing the transaction price;

D1 Mlocate the transaction price to the performance obligations;

E} Recognise revenue when o as an entity satisfies performance obligation.

Revenue from operations

sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised net of indirect taxes.

Erection and commissioning, Claims including escalation charges and Contractual liguidated damages
Revenue on erection and commissioning of contracts &5 recognised on the 'Percentage of completion method'. Claims
including escalation are recognised as revenue on dient’s acceptance or evidence of acceptance. Contractual liquidated
damages payable for delays in completion of contract work or for other causes are socounted for at costs when deducted,
andfor when such delays and causes are attributable to the Company.

i8 Other incoma:
Cther income ks comprised primarily of interest income on fied deposit and rent income. Interest income is recognized using
the effective interest method, Rental income arising from operating lease on investment property |5 accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease term..

Inventories:

hwam‘ﬁcuﬂplteﬂlmﬂmmmwmmmum“mWh;Mlmmm&mk
ocation and condition. -
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Raw metenals valued a1 lower of cost a~c et real=eble value, Cost is determined on the basis of the weighted average
miethod.

Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable vi've, Cost incluces direct materig's,
|abour, other direct cost and & proportion of manufactuding overneads based on normal operating capacity,

Met realisable vaiue is the estimated sefling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs necessary to meke the sale,

210 Retiremant banafits:
Employee benefits indude Provident Fund, | Employes State Insurance Scheme, Gratuity Fund and Compensated Absences,

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company confributes on 2 defined contribution besis 1o Employes's Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance
Scheme, towards post employment benefits, which is administered by the respective Government authortes, and has no
further obligation beyond making its contribution, which & expensed in the year to which it pertains,

Defined Benefit Flans

The Company has & defined benefit plan namely Gratuity For all its employess in the form of Group Gratuity -cum- Life
Assurance Scheme. The liabity for the dafined bersfit &5 determined on the basis of valuation made under the scheme at
year end, which is calculated using the projected unit credit method,

Gairs and losses through remeasurement of the defined benefits obfigations s reflectad in the balance sheat with a charge
or credit recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they otcur, Remeasurement recognized in other
comprehensive income i5 reflected immediztely in retained earmings and will not be redassified to the statement of profit and
loss. For Defined Benefit Plans in the form of Gratuity Fund, the oost of providing benefils is detésmined usng the Projected
Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out &t each balance sheet date.

Short-term and other long-term employes benefits

Short term employes benefit obfigations are measured on an undscounted basis and are expensed as a refabed service
provided. A liabifity is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short term cash bonws or profit sharing plans if
the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the oblgation can be estimated reliabiy.

Leave encashmeant

The employees of the Company are entitled to leave as per the leave policy of the Company. The liability in respect of
wnutilized leave balances is determined using the Projectad Uinit Credit method, with actuarial vakuations being carried out at
each balance sheet date.

Code on Social Security, 2020

The Indian Parfiament has approved the Code on Sodal Security, 2020 which would impact the contrilafions by the
company wwards Provident Fund and Gratuity, The Ministry of Labaur and Ermployment has released draft rules for the Code
on Soclal Security, 2020 on Movember 13, 2020, and has Invitad suggestions from stakeholders which are under active
consideration by the Ministry, The Company and s Indian subsidiaries will assess the impact and its evaluation once the
gubject rules are notified and will give appropeiate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the Code
becomes effective and the relabed rubes to determane the finandcial impact are publishexd,

111 Accounting for taxes on intome:

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tas. Current and deferred tax are recognized in the statement of profit
and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly In equity respectively.

a Current income tax
Current income tax assels and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, The tax rates and tax laws used o compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by
thi end of the reparting period in the countries where the Company operates and generates tenmble income.

Current income taxes are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items recognized outside
profit or loss, ether in other compeehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates position taken in
the tax retums with respect to situations In which applicable tax regulations are subjected to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

b Deferred income bax
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences belween the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial staternents.

The carmying amount of deferred tex assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avalable to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be ulilipes
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent .. F

: probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assel to be recovered.
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Deferred fax assets and hebiities are measured at the 1ax retes [het are expected 10 &ooly i the period in which the Rability
5 selfiad o [he agsel replizec, Dased on [2x rates (BN (3x laws) that hawve been enacted or subStantively enacted by the
oalance sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax llabites and asseis reflects the tex congegquences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the regorting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of s assets
and Eabilities.

Deferred income tax assels is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future t@ble profit will be avallable against
which the deductible termparary differences and tax loss can be utiiized.

Deferred tax assats and llabilities are offsst when there Is 2 legaly enforcegble right to set off current (2o assets against
currant t2x Babilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to
settie its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis,

c The Minimum Alternative Tex (MAT) cred® i5 recognited as an asset only when and to the extent there is conwvincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the Minlmom
Altemative Tax (MAT) credit becomes eligible to be recogrized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations
contained in guidance ksuwed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of 2 credit
to the statement of profit and loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlernent. The Company reviews the same at each balance
sheet date and writas down the camying amount of MAT Credt Entitlernent to the extent there is no lenger convinging
Evidenoe to the effect that the Campany will pay normal income tax during the specfied period.

212 Lease:
As o lessen:
The Company evaluates i an amrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116, Identification of a
lease requires significant judgment, The Company uses significant judgment in assessing the leass term (Encluding
anticipated renewals) and the applicable discaunt rate.
The Company determines the lsase term a5 the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if the Company Is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease il the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company i
reasonably certzin to exeross an option to extend a lease, or nob to exercise 8n option to terminabe a lease, it considers &l
refevant facts and croumstances that creabe an economic incentive for the Company to exerdise the option to extend the
lease, or not to exerciss the option to terminate the kease, The Compary revises the lease term if there i5 a change in the
maf-cancellable period of a lease.
The discount rate Is generally based on the borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases
with simiflar characteristics,

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a corresponding lease
Eiability for all lease arangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term
eases) and low valee leases, For these short-berm and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an
operating expense on a stralght-line basis over the term of the lease,

As a lessor:

The Company has leased certain tangible assats, and such leases, where the Company has substantialy retained all the risks
and rewards of ownership, are classified &s operating leases. Lease income is recognised to the Staterment of Profit and Loss
on a straight line basis over the term of the lease unless the lease receipts to the lessor are structured to incresse in line
with expacted general inflation o compensate for lessors expected inflationary costs ncreases, in which case the same are
recognised as an mcome in line with the contractual tarms.

2.13 Impairment of assets:

Financial assats
The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (BCL) model for the nancial assets which are not
falr vakeed throwgh profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant finanding component is measured
at an amount equal to ifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to
the 12-month ECL, unless there has been & significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are
measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit lasses (or reversal) thal is reguired to adjust the less allwance at
the reporting date o the amount that & required to be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the
Statement of profit or loss.

Hon-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there B an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exsts, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable
amount, An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an assel's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset. unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are |angely
independent of those from other assets,

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss is
measured by the amount by which the cammying valwe of the assats exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset,
An impairment loss is resersad in the statement of profit @nd loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to
de‘termlrr!thembleamuuntThemmdngamwntnfﬂh&aﬁulsmmtnlsmmblﬂm
provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined {net of any aco 3
ization or deprediation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years,
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2.14 Provisions, contingant liabilities and contingent assats

Prowvis:ions are recognized when the Company has a present ohbgation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probabie that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 1o seitle the obigation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obiigation. When the Company expects some or all of 3 provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reémbursement is recagnized as 3 saparate assat, but only when
the reimbursement is wirtually cerfain, The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net
of anv reimbursement,

If the effect of the time value of money & material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that rafiects, when
appnopriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognized as a finance cost,

A contingent liabllity Is 2 possible obligation thet arses from past events whose edistence will be confirmed by the
OCCUFrEnte & nonR-oocumance of one or more uncertain future events beyond the controd of the company or a present
obhgation that s not recognized because it i not probable that an outfiow of resources will be required to sattle the
obbigaticn. A contingent liability also arises in extremedy rare cases whene thers & 3 liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The contingent liability is not recognized in books of account but its existence is
disclosed in financial statements.

A contingent assets, where an Inflow of emnomic benefits is probable, an entity shall disclose a brief description of the
nature of the contingent assats at the end of the reporting period, and, where practicable, an estimate of their finandal
effect, maasured using the principles set cut for provisions in Ind AS 10,

2.15 Financial Instruments
Financial assets
Firamcial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.,
On initial recognition, a financial assef is recognised at fair valee, in case of Financial assets which are recognised at falr
value through profit and loss (FYTFL), its transaction cost are recognised in the staterment of profit and loss. In other cases,
the transaction cost are aitributed to the aoquisition value of the financial asseat,
Financial assets are subssquently classified &5 measured at
Fimanclal Assets
Amortized cost: Fingncial assets that are held within 2 business model whose objective is b hold financial assets in onder
to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured &t amortized
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR') mathod less impairment, if any. The amortization of EIR and loss arising from
impairment, if any s recognized in the Staternent of Profit and Loss,

Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL): A financial asset not dassified a5 either amortized cost or FVWOCL, is
cleszified as FYTPL. Such financial assels are measured at fair value with all changes  in far value, including nvterest income
and dividend income if any, recognized as ‘other income' in the Statesment of Profit and Loss.

Fair value through other eomprehensive income (FYDCI): Finencial assels that are held withn 2 business madel
whose objective is achieved by both, selling finandal assets and collecting contractual cash fiows that are solely payments of
principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value theolgh other compeehensive income, Fair value movements
are recognized in the other comprehensive Income (OCI). Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairmment
losses, if any are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in Ol is reclassified from the equity to ‘cther income’ In the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to ther recognition, except ¥ and in the period the Compary changes its
business model for managing financial assets.

Trade Recelvables and Loans:

Trade receivables are initially recognized at fair value, Subsequently, these assots are held at amortized cost, using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses. The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated Future
cash income throwgh the expectad life af financial instrument,

Equity Instruments

All investments In eguity Instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at fair value |, the Company may,
of initi# recagnition, Frevocably elect to measure the same efther at FYOCT or PYTPL.

The Comparmy makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument. basis. Fair valee changes on an equity instrument s
recognised as other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected 1o measure such instrument
at PWOCIL. Fair valwe changes excleding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at YOO are recognised in OCI.
Amounts recognesed In OCT are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Less. Dividend income on the
imestments in equity instruments are recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Derecognition
TheEtmparry'ﬁeremgnlzﬁaﬂnafﬂﬂmtmmemm:dmmmemﬂmﬁmmmmdﬁmtmu
it transfers the confrackusldghts to receive the cash flows from the assat. ’ ~
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Fimancial liabllities

Initial recognition and messurement

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes 2 party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial labiftes are intially measured at the amortized cost inless at Initlal recognetion, they are classified as fair velue
through profit and loss. All financial liabfites are recognised initisly at Fair value and in the case of borrowings trade
payables and other financlal liabilities, net of directly attributable transaction costs, The Cormpany's fnancial Eabilities indude
borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities.

Subsegquent measurement

Financial liabilitles are subsaquently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method, Finandal liabilities carried at Fair
vtz through profit or loss are measured at falr value with all changes in fair value recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss,

(@) Borrowings: Borrowings are inftially recogrised ab fair value, met of transaction costs Incurred. Borowings are
subssquently measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaciion costs) and the
redemption amount is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the EIR
method. Fees paid an the establishment of loan fadlities ane recognised &s transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it
iz probable that some or all of the faolty will be drawn down. In this case, the fes is deferrad untd the draw down goours,
To the extent there is no evidenoe that it is probable that some or &l of the Facility will be drawn down, the fee & m@pitaiised
as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortized over the period of the facllity to which it relates,

(b} Trade and Other Payables:

These amounts represant liabiities for goods and services providad to the Company prior to the end of finandal year which
&% unpaid. Trade and other payables are presentes a5 current liabiities unless payment 15 not due within 12 months after
the reparting periad, They are recognised initialy at their fair vatue and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effecthve interest method

Derecognition

A financial Kability is derecognized when the obigation spedfied in the contract is dischargad, cancalled or expires,

A fimancial liabity Is derecognized when the obgation spedfied in the contract s discharged, cancelied or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender an substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liabiity are substantialy modified, such #n exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liahility and the recagnition of a new liabidity.

The difference in the respective carmying amaunts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Mrsetting of finandial instruments

Financial assets and finandal liabilities are offset and the net amount i reported In the balance sheet If there |s a currently
enforceable legal right to affset the recognized amounts and there 5 an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the
assets and settle the Eabilities simultaneowsly.

2.16 Investments in Associates
The Company sccounts for its imvestments in assoclates &t cost less accurmulated impairment, iF any.

2.17 Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, iF any. Where an indication of impairment
exists, the carmying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On
disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference betwaen nel disposal proceeds and camying amounts are recognized in
the Statement of Prafit and Loss,

2.18 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash 2t banks and on hand and short-term depasits which are
subject to an msignificant risk of changes: in value,
For the purpose of the statement of cash fiows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined abowe, as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash managemant.

2.19 Foreign currency
Functional currency
The functional currency of the company i the Indian rupee, These financial statements are presented in Indlan rupees and
all values are roundad to the Rupes in e, unless cthenyise stated.

Transactions and translations

Foreign curréncy transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of such transachions. Monetary
assets and liabilities as at the Balance Shest dale are translated at the rates of exchange prevalling at the date of the
Balance Sheet. Geins and losses arising on account of differences in foreign exchange rates on setfement/translation of
monetary assets and liabilities are recognized In the statement of profit and loss, Mon-monetary assets and non-monetary
lahlllmmmmmfwmummmmmammam;mnﬂmmhmmm prevalent at
thia dabe of the transaction.

Effective April 1, 2018 the company has adopbed Appendix B to Ind A5 21- Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
l‘.mﬁltrahmMﬂnﬂaﬁﬁﬂeﬁmn{ummmmwmufdﬂmmﬁqﬁemwmmmmm
cognition of the refated asset, expense or indome when an entity has recelved o paid advance consideration in & fomses
. The: effect on account of adaption of this amendment was insignificant.
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2.20 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity
shases oulstanding dusing the year induding potential equity shares, if any.

Diluted eamnings per share i compited by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other
charges to expense or income {net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the welghted average number of
equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of 3l dilutive potential equity shares.

.21 Segment Reporting:
Based on "Management Approach” &5 defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Degision Maker
evpluates the Compamy's parformance and allocates the resources based on 2n enalysis of various performance indicators by
businass seqments.

Segment Policies:
The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting polides adopted for preparing and
presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole. Comman allocable costs are allocated to sach segment an
an sppropriate basis.

.22 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly atfributable to the acguisition, construction or production of 8 2sset Hhal necessarly takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intendad use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset, All ather
borrowing costs are expensed in the period In which they oo, Bormowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
Entity indcurs in connection with the barmmving of funds.

.23 Recent pronouncements
On March 24, 2021, the Minisiry of Corporate Affairs (“"MCA") throwgh a notification, amended Schedule IT1 of the Comgpanies
Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division 1, 11 and III of Schedule N1 and are applicable from Aped 1, 2021, Ky
amendments relating to Division 11 which relate to compenies whose financial statesnents are required to comply with
Comoanies (Indlan Accounting Standands) Rules 2015 are:

Balance Sheet:

+ Liease liabifities should be separately disclosed under the head Yinancal lisbiities’, duly distinguished as owrent or non- -
current,

+ Certain addiffiona! disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes In eguity share capit2! due to priar
period errors and restated balances at the beainning of the curment reparting period,

*» Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

= Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade pavables, capital work-in-progress and intangible assst
under development.

» If a company has not wsad funds for the specific purposa for which it was borrowed from banks and financial institutions,
then disclosure of details of where it has been used.

* Spedfic disclosura under "additions! regulatory requirement’ such as complance with approved schemes of arrangements,
complance with number of lavers of companies, titte desds of immovable property not hald in name of company, loans and
advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benami property held st

Statement of profit and loss:
= Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR), undisclosad income and crypto o virtusal curmency
specified under the head "additional information’ in the notes forming part of the standalone finandal statements.

The amendments are extersive and the Company will evaleate the same to give effect to them as requined by law.
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AICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ——

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 315t March 2023

5 Mon-current Investmeants

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Investments measured at fare value through Other
Comprehensive Income

Unguoted
Investments in Equity Shares

1,177,000 (Previous Years 1,17,000 ) Equity Shares of Heat Trace

Yicon Lmited of Rs.10/- each fully pald up™ 597 934
[Total 5.97 ERT]
| Aggregate Amount Of Quoted Investments =

| Aggregate Amount Of Unquoted Investments 5.97 9.34

“*Fair value has been estimated by the management based on the unaudited financial statements of the ivestes

Comgarny.
6 Deferred Tax Assents (Met)

[Amount in Lakhs)

As at As at
Particul
kot March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred Tax Asset on Account of :
Disallowance Expenses
Provision for Leswve Encashment 1.36 1.BB
Estimated Credit Loss 15.73 43.37
Current Year Loss 8.00 1.72
Tatal (A) 25,09 45 98
Daferred Tax Liability on Account of :
Provision for Gratusty 0.47
Depreciation 2,15 1.54
Total (B) 2.62 1.94
(Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabillty) [NetT: [AJ(E) 3547 B
7 Other Non-current Assets
{Amount in Lakhs)
As at A5 at
S March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
|Unsecured consicered good unless stated othenwse)

Capital Advances 15.00 5.00
Prepaid Expenses 1.57 2.B1
[ Total 16.57 781 |

8 Inventorles
3 As at As at

PRt March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
At lower of cost or Net Realisable Value
Raw Materials 28276 144,91
Work-in-progress 214.82 80,50
Stock in rade (Trading) 67.58

[Total 645,16




AICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements for the year anded 31st March 2023

9 Trade Receivablas

Xicon
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{Amount in Lakhs)

. As At A5 at
Particul
articulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Unsecured

Considered good 2,066.24 1,788.66

Considered Doubtful {Refer Note 23 With*) 57.39 155.91
2,123.62 1,944,57

Less ;- ABowance for bad and doubtful debts 57.39 155.91

Total 2,066.24 1,7BR.66

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade recelvables
based on a provision matrix, The provision matrbx takes info account historical credit koss experience and adjusted for

farward-looking information.

10 Cash and Cash Equivalents

{Amount in Lakhs)

As at As at
Particul
phiigims March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A. Cash on hand 0,70 0.82
B. Balances with Banks
Current Accounts .24 15.86
Total 1.94 16.68
11 Other bank balances
(Amount in Lakhs)
As at As at
S — March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
On Margin Money Accounts 104.58 31.82
With Maturity within 12 Months from Balance Sheet Date
Total 104.58 31.92
*Fixed deposits are under llen with Danks 10wards working Capital facilites
12 Other Financial Assets
{Amount In Lakhs)
As at Az at
Particula
il March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Security Deposit 15.34 3792
Advance to Staff 1.45 4,07
Others Receivable 7.51 6.97
Interest Accrued on Fized Deposit with Orginal Maturity of Less
thane 12 Months - 0.26
Total 24.30
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RICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED - T

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
131 Other Current Astets

{Amount in Lakhs)

£ A5 at A5 3t
Particulers March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2072
Unsecured Considered Goods
Acvance to Suppllers 163.83 7126
Citiver Advamoe 1.83 ik
Balances with Government Autharities 30286 L
Prepaid Experses 1B.4E 628
Prepald Gratuiy 1.8
Unbilled Revenue B5.BA A5.56
Takal 554,67 418,16

14 Equity Share Capital
{Amount in Lakhs)

As at AS 3t

Pt March 31, 2023 March 31 2022
Avthorised
60,00,000 (Previous Years 60,00,000) Equity shares of

A5, 10/ mach &00.00 G00L00
Total Authorised share Capital B00, 00 a00.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up
30,910,585 (Previous Years 30,91,586] Bquity Shares af

|Rs. 100 each 305,16 309,16

| Total Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share 309,16 309.16

Capital

& Reconciliation of the numbaer of shares sutstanding :- { Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars A= at March 31, 2023 £i5 at March 31, silis
) Nao. of Shares Amount Mo, af Shares Armadunt

Thires gl the beginming 30.92 308,16 0,02 05,16
Add: Share warrants issued during the year - - - -
Add ; Calls in arrears received during the year - = . -
Shares at the and 30.92 305.16 30,532 309.16

b. Terms/ rights attached o equity shares
The company has only one class of Equity Shares having Par Value of Rs 10/~ par Share, Each hoider of the Equity is entitied to one vote per share, In the
event of the liquidation of the company , the holdars of equity shares will be entitled bo receive remaining asset of the company, which will be in propartion o
thie number of eguity shases held Dy the shanebalders,

RN AT the Sevity shaTee ‘“““’m"" e compeny As at 315t March, 2023 Asat 31st March, 2022
Ho. % of holdings o % of hoding:
R L sy SEOI0. Bty Somen of 17.08 55.25 17.08 55.25
o_[Details af share holéers halding mare than 5%
e e _-i-'l at 31st March, 2023 ) Az at 31st Manch, 2022
Equity Shares of Rs. 10y~ each fully paid up No. % of haldings Wo, o nodings
Kaiser Corporation Limited 17.08 55.25 17.08 55,25
Lorance Investments & Trading Lid. 852 27.56 8.52 27.56
Crocamb Investments Limibed. LUK 225 T.28 225 7.28
REPL Global HC Ltd, UAE 291 9.45 2.9 9.45




15 Other Eguity
[amaunt in Lakhs)
i AsS at As at
e March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Capia! Reserve 7.15 7.15
Ceneral Ressrss T0.01 70.01
Retained Earnings
Retained Eamings theough Profit & Loss 421.76 395,85
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of income tax
Bquity Enstruments through other comprehansive incomea [4.69) {220
Remeasurement of et defined benefit obligatians 11.80 6.34
[Total 506.02 477.26
16 Maon-current Provisions{Long Term)
(Amount in Lakhs)
Az at s Bt
R March 31,2023 |  March 31, 2002
Prentision for employes benefits
Leave Encashment 4.17 541
Total 417 541
17 Current Barrowings{Short Term)
[Amount in Lakhs)
As at As ab
Paiin March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Secured
A. Loans Repayable on demand
From Banks
Open Cash Cradt 705,20 S16.85
Owesdraft ** - (0.0}
EISME Term Loan == 14.78 4753
Unsecured
Loan From Director 16.50 -
Othear 278.44
Total 1,024.42 564,38
1 *Cash credit faclity are secured against:
) Primary
First and exclusive hypothecation charge on alll existing and future receivables | current assets) moveable assets{ moveable froed
azsets of the Barmower |
B) Coilateral

XICOMN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Maotes to the finsncial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

E-
=
=

b,
=

") First and exclusive charge on immoveabds properties being Leasshold land and building siktuated at Office premises at Gala No 282
fo 247 at Solaris - 1, Saki Vihar Road, Opp L& T Gabe Mo 7, Powai owned by Xicon international Emited”

"ji) Arst and exclusiva charge an Factory at Plot bo [-13, MIDE Murbad, Near Ambe Farro Metal Processor, Murbad, Taluka Murbad,

Digtrict Thane owneed by Xicon international Limited.”

i) Tl seanch repoet of the property ta be found satisfactory to the Bank.

C) Guarantes

*I} Corporate guarantea's of Katser Corporation and Lorance Investments and Trading Limibed.

‘Cash credk faciiity cames inberest ab & M MCLR +1.70% and repayable an demand

=2EMSME term Loan

Second charge on all existing and future recehvables [ curment assets) moveable assetsf’ moveable foed assets of the ..

e
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Notes to the financial statemants for the yvear ended 31st March 2023

KAico
(=

Trade Payables
[{Amount in Lakhs]
i As at As at
Particula
articulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade Payables
Due to Micrg and Small Enterprises (Refer Note Mo 50) 5.20 55.52
Due to Others 1,335.26 1,213.84
Total 1,240.47 1,269.36
Other financial liabilities
{Amount in Lakhs)
As at As at
Bty iues March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest Accrued and due on M5ME Creditors 2.78 1.88
Salary Payable 47.57 44 28
Other Payable 27.51 12.41
Total 78.26 58.57
Other Current Liabilities
{Amount in Lakhs)
As at As at
Pairticafurs March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Other Payables
(i) Statubory Dues 26,10 12.32
(ii} Advances from customers 31275 13690
Total 238,85 149,22
Provisions
{Amount in Lakhs)
: As at Asat
Particul
i March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Provision for emplovee benefits :
Provision for Gratuity - 6.20
Prowision for Leave Encashment 1.05 1.36
Total 1.05




XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Hotes o the financlal statements for the year ended 315t March 2023

Revonui From Dpermabans

KAicon
[ IS

[Amaount in Lakhs)

[T A5
imosntis March 31, 2023 march 31, 303
Sale af Products
+ Liocal 193.90 97e.87
- Expirt 3s0.00 1,155 60
Salp of Senera
» Local 71109 856
- Export 538,10 -
Othar Oparating Rivanues
Salp af Soap 1.53 5.18
Dy D Bk 174 18.81
Total Rivenas From Jperathans 1,248.39 3743
Other Incame
[Amourt in Lakha]
Asal s at
P March 312023 parch 11, 223
[ritrast I Bank an Deposl 388 11
[nterest From Others 032 145
Di#fferance [n Exchange Ratn [Hat) 929 s
Exo=es Provision / Sundry Bslances Writhen Back 362 7.1
Freaght Ratowensd = 155
Profit an Saies of Froperty, Piant & Bquipment - .
Riant Riguisad 140 40
Fuvraal af Doutthad D Prpsegion Qi.82 a
Macllaraaus oo (F Re.r d 024
Tatal 153.34 15,00
Cost of materials conswmed
{amount in Lakhs)
Az ab A= nt
i march33, 2023 | warch3n oz |
By Material
Opering Stock of Raw materisl 144.091 11535
A Puechases Ti1.16 1,300 0%
Less: Cinsing Stock of Rawr maberis (366N [144.91%)
Tatal Cost of materials consumied 493311 1,270.53
Purchase of Stock in Trade
{fmoaunt in Lakhs
As at ULE- o
P — March 31, 2023 Harch 31, 2002
Electrical Moo Tracers 98.83 11264
Total #0583 T12E4
Changes in inventaries of finished goods, Stock-in-Trade pad wark-in-progress
[Amaunt in Lakhs)
Partice Az ar B at
o March 31, 2023 Manch 31, 2022
Stocks at the end
Finishad Good
Wark-Frphigredd 214,82 50,50
Shock-in-Trade 67.58 5127
28240 17097 |
s Snocks st the: begimning
Finishad Good
Work-in-progress S0.50 b
Sinck-in- Trade H1.27 63.08
17177 BY.5E |
Total [E£10.53) ﬂﬂ.l‘j;}]
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Hotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

Xicon
| e |

Manufacturing Cost
{Amount in Lakhs)
Asat Az at
Particul
T March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Peyments bo Subtontractors 495.42 B15.63
Consultancy Chames 23.85 -
Conveyanos Sika 3.41 LT?
Diegel fFugl Charges G.74 13.60
Irspection Charges 2.33 -
Equipment Hire Charges 54.99 13969
Frasght Charges 25.12 63,83
Insurance 3.49 4.78
Packing Experses 3.87 40.82
Power Charges 11.25 2093
Site Office Expenses 24.67 3708
Medical Expenses for Labour 0.29 0.BE
Testing Fees 16.84 735
Stores and Spares 7§7.94 150.75
Staff Walfare - Site 4.892 6.89
Travelling Expenses i6.12 28.3%
TOTAL 77134 1,182 49 |
Employes Benefits Expense
(Amount in Lakhs)
. A= at hg at
hasasia g March 31, 2023 March 34, 2022
Salaries, Wages end Bonus 141.06 215,14
Contributions to Provident and Other Funds B.72 B.EQ
Seaff Welfare Expenses 4.73 2.53
[ Total 255.50 22707 |
Fimance Costs
{Amsount in Lakhs)
As at Mg Bt
i March Eh 2023 March 31I JEd
[nterest expense on:
Secured ban 69.21 58.74
Unsecured Loan 17.67 10,74
Statutory Delay Payment 3.25
 Other borrowing oasts 21.12 19.52
Total 111.25 E9.00
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XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
Other Expenses
[Amount in Lakhs)
As at hs o
Particaire March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Electricity Changes 11.04 8.12
Rent induding lease rentals = L84
Provvision far Doubiful Dedils® - 11.54
Liguidatad Damanes 6.30 232
Repairs and maintenance - Buldings 8.50 b.E2
REpairs and Maintenance - Machinery 1.96 .22
DilfTerence In Exchanae Rate [NET) - 8.19
Rates ared [Exes 6.00 5,52
Selling expenses 52.29 64,66
Bank Charoes - 6.03
Pricr Period Expenses 4,23 .
Prirting B Stationery 10.26 6.1%3
Freight Cutward 13.72 fO.51
Sacurity Charmes 5.49 6.73
Travelling and convevanca 45,88 35.83
Favments o audtors (Refer note belaw 0.50 0.50
Legal & Professional Fees 78,77 E7.45
Miscellaneous expenses G010 16.49
Total 305.05 324.40
Moke :
Payment to the suditors comprises
A Auditars - statutory sudit 0.22 0.2
For Tax audit 020 0.0
For Other Sardices 008 0.08
Taotal 050 0.50
*Break up of Provision for Doubtful Debts 155,50 144.36
Omening Balance (98.52) 11.54
Add ;- Frosision Made during the year 57.38 155.90
Closing Balance
Other Comprehensive Income
_ _ [Amount in Lakhs)
Equity instrument Other Item of Total
Particiilars through other crmprahansive
- comprehengive Income
For tha year ended 31 March 2023
[tams that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Eguity instuments through other comprehensive income -
(i) Remeasurement gain/{lass) of defined benefits obligations {337 1.8 4.
Less: Income tax relating to e that will not be reclassified b profit or loss " (182 Vil
[Total {1.49) 46 2,97 |
For the year ended 31 March 2022
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i} Equity instruments throwgh other comprehensive incomes (1.7 {140 (1.33)
(ii} Remessurement gain/[loss) of defined banefits ablgations 0.00
048 (011} 037
Less: Income tax relating to kems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Total {25 0.29
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XICOM INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

32 Contingent liabllitles and commitments (to the extent not provided for) (Amount in Lakhs)
As at As &t
PARTICULARS
31 March 2033 31 March 2042

A.|Contingant Liabilities
Quistanding bank guaraniees issued by bankers on
behall af the company. 473,13

Letters of credit

204.28

B| Commitmeants
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 15.00 5.00
|executed on capital acoownt and not provided for (net
of advance of Rs. 15,00,000; Previous Year Rs,

15.00,00073

33 Segmental Information
The Board of Diectors of the Company collectively has been identified as the Chisf Operating Decision Maker
(CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108, Operating Segments. The CODM evaluates the Company's performance and
alizcates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by industry classes. Accordingly, segment
information has been presented for industry classes. The Company's has only one reportable business segment of
Infrastructure Projects, Therefore, there is no obher significant classes of operating segment.

The gesgraphic information is based on business sources from that geographic region and on individual customer
imvoices or in relation to which the revenue is otherwise recognized.

Geographic information {Amount in Lakhs)
- _ For the year ended Tor e year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Segment revenue
wWithin India 916,99 1,B85.85
Dutside India 928.09 1,356.60
Total 1,845.08 3,292,95

Major customers
The fallowing table gives details in respect of revenue generated from top customer and top 5 customers:

: Far the year ended Far the year ended
PR 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Revenue from top customer 630.05 1,461.34

Revenue rom top 5 customers 1,489.89 1,567.39 |

Three customer accounted for 34.15%, 12.33% and 12.22% of the revenue for the year ended 31 March 2023 and
three customer accounted for 45%, 14.95% & 14.268% for the year ended 31 March 2032, However, none of the

other customers accounted for more than 10% of the revenue for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March
2022,




XICOMN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Holes bo 18 Fisgseisl stalemanti for the pear ended 31 Manrch 2023

34 Trade Payable Ageing schidiohe for 1ha yede nded aa 3151 Mar JO3T

35

{Amaount in Lakhs}

IEJS Tor !ﬁlﬁ-'q |qrrnd|.lr_1|;l|r|5ﬂ.|l;f._ ay E
Loss Than Gne | Oneiobea | Twoio Thres | Mons Chan Thoee Tetal
Particulary Year Years Years Ll
L, MEME EE i 57 5.2
3. Ot TE4 54 41184 ] 13a5= 1.335.27
3. Dispines Dues- MSYE =
. Dsparer Dues- Others
Total ; a7 454.71 195 134,84 134047
Tracte Paysiile Aguing schedcle o the year ended on T1st Mar 3022
Armoant In Lakfs
E{: for [=] ug pay
Less Tham Ong O b bwd Tt bd Thase | Mons than Thes Total
e L Yogr Yo kil ]
L. HSME £5.51 [ENi 5] v ' 5557
2, Others 1,043, 23 .45 .21 . ] LIN184
3 Dhputed Dot MSME '
& Dpetes Does- (Frars
Toksl 1 1,098.73 3546 12 128.59% 1.260.36

Trasde Receivabile Ageing schedule for the yesr ended on 315t Har 2023

{Amsunt in Lakhs)

0/ for lolowing periody frem due date of payment
[T TR TREN G6E | ONE LG Gwa | Two 5 IRIGE || MGre Than THhise
Particulars A Fear Yeurs Years Taksl
1. Uncfsmind Trade Recevabis comidensd goods T1E5] #50.23 413.5¢ 426,00 206524
1. Linchigagtind Traede Recesvable comsidened Doubriful N . . i =
3. Dispubed Trade Rerehabis ConEidensd ool B . -
Fﬁm Track Recewatie comsigersd Doubdd |
Toksd ; Tigg1 450,33 437,50 A36,00 3,05 T
Trade Recelvabie Ageing schedule Tor the year ended on 3158 Mar 3033
[Hmigianl in Lakba)
05 Mo Follrsving perbsds Trom due dabe of BaymEnt
[~TET Than Ghe Ore = b Twe 80 Thies | Fiew BhER TRiea
Particulars yaar e Fears Years Tatal
|5, Uvnilmgnstind Tinch Réceivable comsidensd goods 519035 B39 12693 1505 1913465
. Undispuied Trade Receswablis ronsidered Doubul = - 5 o =
1. Daspuied Trade Recesvable consdered goods A - T
4, ol T
[T m?-mmmumu [ " 3052 a0
Takal : 1,158.25 181.39 13893 436,00 104457
Fiwed Axwnks

a) Thi company makiian 1he Fasd pisets regeter snd defails of Phesionl locaion and quantty are propery mainkzin by the company.
) Thia comgany annial Bass s i plipsical cinnl of the Feed sasets and there is no discregancy in e report.
T} The Irremicraabib property o e Teosd pidiasty schedyle kindly find the disclosure for itle desd in name of the company.

e R e Sy | S
1 Leaeehold Land 1908 Hcon Inbermational Lid.
1 |Difos Fremises nn Hicon Inbemational Lbd.
3 |Euddngs 13589 Kicon Inbermatoesl Lid,

d] Thaei i fed prodeedicy intisted or pending

Xicon
| e




KICOM INTERMATIOMAL LIMITED
Nealed bo the finkncial statements for e vear ended T1 Harch 3023

A7 Inweniory

ThE TENDSY AROD OF D COTIRNY 308 (rORDEClY MENGANRD I Gty DR Cout e et e my the mansgement Teee it Discepanty

mriie withe m bodies of eoooust and reeniory repor.

Thi Saenipasy i bortrving from benk o9 the bl of securly of Biack and rade receivale . There &5 variance in guarberly reburn fled with Se Benk and

a5 modibed fgure.
Particalars A per Bodk Ax i Bask Differsnce Reasan
1 Sk . EAL LB E45.LE 0co
3 |Oebioes 206634 15812 (51.58)| Refer Nede Ho. 5 (a & b)
3 |Cresitors 775.06 7?5.|1'5T 'ﬁlﬂm_mrmm Lic)

Mobe Mo 1!« The variance in Debloc & Credidors & per submilled stock @lalantesst o the bank i due fo the following ressons

Kot far Diebbors

& Frowiskon for BOL RE. 5739 (Lext in Books weiee)

b. Bad Deirs - Balsnce Wiite off Rx. 34.49
HNote far Ceedibtors

€ Mobe Mo, 19 - Trede Peyabie includes Crediton for Expersas Comirechors, Sub-monfrectons, Professional, Consumables, Rerd, Transporters &

Dihers.
[Amount in Lakhs)
38 i A ot T0st s at st
March 2023 | March 2023
Cuerai Ra%ia 1.22 127
Detit- Egatty Ratio 126 o2
Dbt Service coverage ratio o7 By
|tewertery tumover s 187 TES]
{tradi receivabis imewver ratin 088 1.3
[Trase Pavaisie nornover ratio 138 LT
|reat Capimal tusmomeir cate 588 10,57
|et prte resn a0l 003
{Return on capte? emploved o.54 0.3

Xicon



19 Dpisclosure pursuant to Ind AS - 115 ‘Construction Comtracts'
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a)

k)

XICON INTERNATIOMNAL LIMITED
Kotes bo the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Amount in Lakhs)

~Kicon
[ [

Particulars For the year
rE sacd Far the year anced
31 March, 2623 31 March, J22
Armount Armount
Detalls of contrack revenue
Coniract revenue recocnised during the vear Fr.73 1,6%51.74
regate amount of conbract past recoanised during the e 55E8.34 1.216.08
Amnount received For contracts in prooress 358.96 1,382.50
Retertion money for contracts in proaress IB.595 135,77
GRISS Amourt dus from ausstamers for contracs work [assst 618.77 35924

Employee benefits obligations

Retirement benefis in the farm of Provident Fund &ne & defined contribugion schema @nd the contributions ane charged to the statement of profit and loss
of the period when the conbributions to the respective funds are due, There 2me no other pbilgations gther than the contribution pavabla to the respactie
trusts,

The Company pravides for samed leave benefit (incuging compensated absences) o the emgloyess of the compeny which sccrue annually . As per the
niies af Company, the samed leave is en-cashable duing the service and on retiement. The (iabiity far the same i recognized on the bass of sctusrial
waiyztan,

iGratulty labilty |s defined benefit cbiigation and s proviced for on the basis of an actuarisl valuatian mede & the end of esch financial yesr.

The Company has dassfied the varfous benefits provided to empbonyees 28 unde:

i. Defined contribution plans:
[Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Your anded
31 March 2033 31 March X122
Contribution bo provident Fund 834 B.14
TOTAL B.34 B.1%

ii. Defined benefit plam:
Gratuity

The Campary hes 8 defined benefit gratulty plan, The gratulty |s payeble on death whilst in senviee or withdréwal from service due ba resignation,
tenmination or early retiement and on retirerent from service at normal retirement age.

The fpllowing tadie sets oot the emounts recogrized in the Company’s financial statements a5 at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 20022,

biouacis 1 P:;mm “ifﬁr-ai
DiSCoAt Fake (par Bnmwf) 'r,l;'_li 6.85%
Rate of infrease In coenpersation levels (per annum) 7.00%% 7.00%
Expacted rata of reburn on assals
Attrition rate 10.00%
Relirement age 5B Years




XICON INTERMATIONAL LEIMITED

Hotes to the financial stabemests for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Amaunt in Lakhsh

Year ended Year gnoed
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 Manch 2022
Grafusty Funded
Chamges in Present value of Obligation
Prasent walue of defined banef olfigation & the begnning of the year 13.45 1224
Currant service oost 3.18 329
Intenest cost 1.54 1.31
Actuarial (Gairs)Loss
Actuarial (gairs)) losses aricing Trovm changes in demographic assumption LR oon
Actuprial (gaire)/ losses anising Irom changes in financal assumptian® {D.42) {0.84)
Actuanal [gaing)/ losses adsing from changes in expenience adjusiment {703 .51
Past senvice oot - vested besefits 0.00 oo
Benefits pad [ 5.08
Present walue of defined beref obligation &t the emd of the year li%] ;-Tnl
. |Fair value of Plan Assets
Fair valoe of plan assets at the heginning of the yeer 17.16 12,78
Inberest niome 1.25 0.5z
Retuery on plan ssets el inberest Income™® 0.0 .07
ral Gai D.oD (%]
Emplayer’s corgributions 4,10 6.54
Benetts palc (2.01) fa.es)|
Ir weie of plan assets at the end of the year 20.53 17,36
Amaount to be recognised in the Balance Sheet and Statemaent of Profit and Logs Accownt
PO &t end of period 18.73 2347
Fair velue of plan assets a3 end of period 20.54 1738
Funded status 181 (5.3}
Nt asmeto[liabhihy) recogaised in the balance sheet LE1 [E.IEI:II
Expenses recognised in the Stabement of Profit and Loss
service cost 318 k|
Interest oost on benedTt oblgation (neth 0.28 033
expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 3.47 368
Ramaasurement Effects Recognised in Other Comprahensive Incoms for tha year
| {gains} losses recognised Tor pariod (7.45)| (o)
al (g2ins))' losses arising from changes in financial sssumption 0.00 i 11]
| (gains) losses arising from dhanges in expenience adjustment 0.00 000
M an plan asset a.07 (007
roognisad In ather comprehensive income (7.38)] (10.39)
Mawements in the Liability recognised in Balance Sheat
pening net liability 6.20 946
ent to opening balance LUK .00
505 25 8 3.47 168
riuticn paid {410} {56.55)
mprehensiee inoene () (7-38 {0,400
kasing net lisbiity i 6.15 |




AICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

XAicon
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{Amount in Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
_ Gratuity Funded
vil. [The expectad maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity is as follows:
Year 1 1.90 206
Year 2 1.89 4,25
Year 3 1.84 2.04
feear 4 3.01 1497
Year 5 1.59 159
Years b To 10 8.45 8.53
viil. | Sensitivity Analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation o changes in the weighbed prindpal assumptions
is
DHscount rate (1% movement) 17.56 22.03
Discount rate (-1% maovwement) 20.05 25.10
Salary escalation rate (1% movemant) 19.97 25.00
Sadary escafation rate (-1% movemant) 17.62 22,10
1. e major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total
Insurer managed funds 100%% 100%




XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

41 Income Taxes

Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss consists of:

Aicon
=

{Amount in Lakhs)

3 Year ended ¥ear ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current income tax 5,51 43.98
Deferred Lo 21.53 {1.80%
Tax adjustrment related earlier years
Current @x -

Mat Credit =
Income tax expense reported in the statement ol prolit or loss 31.04 42,18
Income tax relating to other comprehensive income {Amaount in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
|Met (Loss)Gain on remeasurements of defined benafit plans (1.04) 0,37
Tncome tax expense charged to OL] 11.08) 037
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XICON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED S —
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Related party disclosures
Related party relationship:
Holding Company
Kalser Corporation Limited
Associates Enterprises
Heat Trace Xicon Lid,
Enterprises in which key management personnel or thelr relatives have sigrificant influence
Heat Trace ¥icon Lid,
Cucamib Imvestments Limited -UK
Kasser Arts Pyt Lid
Key management Persaonnel {KMPF)
Hemant K Talapadabsr - Director
VG Mukund = Director
Lyla Mehta -~ Diredtor
Natesg:
Ko amounts in respect of related parties hawe been writhen offfback during the year,
The relatiorships a5 mentioned above perian to those related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year,
Related party relationships have baen determined on the barsis of the requirement of the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS}-24 "Related
Party Disclosure™ and the same have been identified by the mansgement relied upon by the auditors.
Transactions during the year with related parties:
Amount in Lakhs)
Sr. For the year Far the year
Hi; Particulars ended ended
: 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
(i) |Rent received
Heat Trace Xicon Lid. 2.40 240
{il} |Purchase of stock-in-trade
Heat Trace Xicon Lid, 22.33 40,65
¥aiger Corporation Limited 7.03 363
(iil) |Consultancy paid to holding company
Eaiger Corporation Limited 12,00 13.00
(iv} |Consultancy pald to directar (KMP)
Vi Mukund 87 9.67
(v} |Loan taken from director [ KMP)
Hemant K Talapadatur 36.50 -
{vi} |Loan repaid to director [ KMP)
Hemant K Talapadatur 20,00 =
{wil) |Expenses incurred an their behalf
Haak Trace Xicon Lid. 3.60 347
Outstanding as on 315t March 2023 Amount in Lakhs)
5. ARTIC As at As at
LT " ERS March 31, 2023 | March 31 2022
{1} |teat Trace Xicon Ltd. 26.74 4360
i)
a.re 50
fiiiy
0.00 9.34
{iii)
3.53
146
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43 Impairment of Assets
There was no Impairment loss on the fixed assets on the basis of review carried out by the management in accordance with
IncEan Accounting Standard (Ind AS)=36 "Impairment of Assets’,

44 Lease
a) Company as lesses

The Company has entered Into short term lease for premises under Leave and License agresments. There is no spedfic obligation
for reneval,

Fram 01 Aprl 2019, the Indlan Acoounting Standard e, IND-AS 116 "Leases” became effective, the Compeny hes adopled the
standard with modified retrospective approach as per Para CB (c) (i) of IND AS 116. However, based on the assessment done by
management, there is no material impact of the such amendment, hence “Right of use asset”, (representing Its right of use the
leased asset over the lease term) and also lizbiity towards the present value of the balance of future lease payments for the
leases has not been recognised.

The cash cutflow of lease payments with respect fo the sbove lease recognised in the staterment of profit and loss for the financial
year s RS, NIL (31 March 2022; Rs. 0.B4 Lakhs).

b) Company as lessor

The company has given Premises on Leave & License basis which is renewable on mutual besis. The amount of minimum lease
Nngome with respect to operating lease recognized In the statement of profit aad loss for this year is Rs. 2.4 Lakhs (31 March
2022: Rs.2.4 Lakhs).

45 Earnings Per Share (EPS)
{Amount in Lakhs)

Faor the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Met profit after tax as per statement of profit and |oss attributable to equity 25.80 0598
shareholders (Amount in Lakhs)
Weighted average number of equity shares used as denarminator for 30.82 30.92
calculating basic EPS (in nos.)
Add: weighted average potential equity shares ; B
Total weighted average number of equity shares used as denominatar for 20.92 3092
|calcuiating diluted EPS

Face value per equity share 10.00 10.00

Basic earmings per share

Diluted eamnings per share
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KICON INTERNATICNAL LIMITED

Motes Lo the Tinancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

48 Financial REk Management and Policies
A. Capital Management

Xicon
=

The chjecthees when managing capfial ame to =faguand the reportng entty’s abilty to oondinue 35 a going ©onoem), 50 khat & can cortinue to provice neturns oo
pwners and berefiis for other stakeholoers, and to provide &7 20Squate retw 1o owiners by pricing the sales commensurately with the ievel of risk. The managemant
sets the amount of capitel to meet it recuirements and the risk taken. Thene wene no changes in the approach o capZal management during the reporting vear. The
mansgement manages the canital struchee 2nd makes adiostments to it whane necessaey or possibie In the ight of chanpes in conditions and the risk characierstics
of the underlying e, In order ta maintain or adjust the Gpital srudiure, the management may adius: the amoynt of dividends pald §o owners, netum capial to
owners, isoe new shanes, or Sell sgeets to reduce delft. The management montors the capRal on the bass of the debe-to-adjusted captal mato, This ratic Is
caiulated &5 pet debifadiusted capitsl (a2 Shown below). Met debt is calodated as intal borrowings less cash end cash equivalents, Adiosted capial comprigs all
companents of equity. The Company's Bnencial risk management i 20 integral part of how 1o plan and execute its business strategies. The risic management policy IS
approwed iy the respedive emity's Bosrd/Board’s Commities. The Company's prinopa! financial labilkies comprise loans and bomowings, trade and other payables.
The main purpose of these Tinancial lishiites s 1o fineace the Compeny’s operations and to provide guarantees to support It operations in select instances. Tha
Compam?s prnCina Ninanclal aosets indude loans, trade and other recelvables, and cash and cash equivalents that darve dinsctly from itS operations and imvestments,
The company 5 exoosed bo matket risk, credit fsk © houidity sk ste.

(Amount in Lakhs)
Partlculars As at A st
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2002

Al current and non-current bormowings 1,024.42 564,38
Trace payables 1,340.47 1,260.35]
Citner Fnandal lehilties 76.26 58.57]
Less cash and cash eguivalents 1.94 |
Met debts [A] 2,441.21 1,875.63
Equity share capital 309.16 09.16)
Cither equity 50602 av7.25)
Total Eguity [B] 15,18 741
Capital and Net Debk [ €= A+B] 3,156.39 2,662.04]
Bebi-to-adjusted capital ratio (%) [A/C] 7497 6]

B. Market Risk

ekt risk Is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values o cash fiows that may resul Froen @ changs in the price af a firancial instrumeant. The walue of the financial
irstrument may change a5 2 result of a change in the Interest rates, foreign currency exchenge rabes and other market changes that affect masket risk sensithve
irsbrumaents. Market risk & afiributable to all market risk sensitive finandal instruments including investments and depasits, foreign currency receivables, payables and

Ioans and bormowings.

Interest rate ridk i the risk that the fer value or future cash fliows of a finandal Instrument will fuctuate because of a change in market interest rates, In order io
aplimize the Compam’s postion with regands 1o inberes? income and inbenest expenses and to manage the interest rate risk, trextury performs 2 comprehershve
corpanste interect risk management by belancing the prapection of fomd rate and floating rate finencial ingtruments in & totzl partfala, The Company has 1004 of its
debt in form of fixed rade instruments and  the mansgement of the Company hes concluded that the Company i not sxpasad to significant interest rate risk 25 at the

resgpective repanting dates,
|, Foreign Currency Risk:

Forgign curmency nisk (forsign curmenoy revenues and expenses-primadily US dollars) is the risk that the fair value or fbure cash fiows of an exposure will fluchuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates, A significant portien of the Company’s revenues ane in these foreign curmencies, while a significant portion of is oosts
ang in Irdizn rupess. A% & result, f the velue of the Indian nipee apprecates refabive (o these foreign cumendes, the Company's revenuss measuned in rupeas may
dacrease. The exchange rate between the Indian rupes and these forelipn curnendes has changed substantialy in recent periads and may continue to Auctuate

sitbestantially in the futune.

The campamy 5 sxposed to loreign exchange risk &nddng from variows currency exposures, primanly with respect to US Dollar, Burg Singapore Dollars and Great

Britzin Pound.

Foreign curmancy @xpasures a5 at the year end nol hedged are:

[Particulars Currency ?'I'F'l As at 31 March 2023 As 2t 31 March 20332
Amount in Amounts Amourd in Foreign Amounts
Fareign currency (in Lakhs} CLrTEnCy {in Lakhs)
Trade recelable LED 321,254.07 264.79 543,641,581 410,45
Trade recehabie Eure 182,603.39 163.15 182.602.35] 153,54
Other financisl assets KD 2,810.00 7.51 181 697
Othvlsr CUNent 355etE WD 122 2, 7000001 W)
Trade paysbis GEP 0.29 290.00 029
Trade payabie usD 12686 I8, 000,00 28.569
Trade payabls Eurg 65.17 ¥2,939.00 61.33
Trade payable® LAF oo 197500 0.08
Trade paysble® AED: 001 g =
Trade payabia® usD 058 - -
Advance from oushomes usD 137

*Trade pevale or e vear ended 31 March 2003 - Rs. 152,91
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Foremgn currency sensitivity:
The foliowing table demanstretes the senstivity 1o a 10% increasefdecnease in foreipn ourrencies exchange rates, with all ather variables
Pt comstant
Foreign cusrancy senstivity analysis (irmpact on profit before ta)
{Amount in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2023 A5 at March 31, 2022
Particulars
10% increase 10% decrease 10% increase 10% decreasa

Impact on Profit and Loss
Trade receivabs 16.48 -26.48 41.05 {41.05)
Trade recefvable 16.32 =16.32 15.35 {15.35)
Other financial assets 0.75 -0L75 070 {0LRD)
Cither cument essels 072 -0.72 067 {0LET)
Trade payable 0.03 =0.03 0.03 {0L03)
Trade payable 1169 -12.69 287 (2.87)
Trade payable 6.52 =6.52 6.13 {6.13)
Trade payable® 0.00 =0.00 000 (0,007
Trade payahlp® 0.00 -0.00 000 {0,007
Trade payable* 0.08 -0.06 0.00 (10.00)
Advance from cusiomer 0.14 -0.14 0.13 (0.13}
Bdvance from customer - - -
Total 63,69 (63.69) 65.93 {E6.93)
* Trade peyables for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 - Re. 19,29 and Ks, 9,03

C. Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the company. Credit rigk
arises primarily from financial assets such &5 trade receivables, investment n mutsl fumds, derivative financial instruments, other
balances with banks, loans and other recelvables, The outstanding trade receivables are regularly monitored and apprapriste action is
taken for cobaction of overdus receivables. Cred rigk arising from investment in mutual funds, derivative financial instruments and other
balances with banks is Bmited and there is no collateral held against these because the counterparties are bariks and recognised financial
institutions with high credit ratings assigned by the international credit rating agencies. The carmying amounts of financial assets
represent maximum credit esposune.  The Compary assesses the credit quality of the courter parties, taking into account their fnandal
position, past experience and ather factors.

Expoasure to credit risk
Financial assef for which loss allowance is messured using expected cred® loss model:

AT S— '

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
imancial year
5487 9,34
rade receivablies 2.066.24 1.788.66
Cash and cash equivalents 1.94 16.68
Bank balance other than cash amd cash equivalent 104.58 3192
Oher financial assets 24.30 4877
YE&F 2,703.03 1,895.52
Revenue [ Trade receivable

Credit rick is the risk of finandal loss arising from counterparty fallure to repay according to the contractual terms. Credit risk
encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of detesiaration of crediowarthiress a4 well a5 concentration of rigks,

The Company needs &o strengthen its process and document credit palicy for evaluating credit risk, setting and reviewing eredit limits
and creditworthiness of customers an a continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted. The management is in the process of
strengthening comprehensive credit risk management policy for the Company. As a part of this process, the Company has taken
fallowing steps during the year;

a) Authorisation of Credit limits by directors far all significant receivabies

b} Review end enhancement of expected credit loss provision

)} Creation of credit rsk reserve to provide for unexpected conbingencies

mmmmmmwmm:mmnnmuwqua maximum payment period of 30 - 99 days for &
customars . The Company's bulk customers are gavernment partics and have been transacting with them for over significant period of
time.
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Ageing analyss of the age of frade recelvable at the end of reparting year:

[Amount in Lakhs)

Age of receivables: As at hs b
3i-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Within the credit period 1,098.09 334.E3
1-80 days past due 15.33 255,34
91-180 days past due (156.92)| 282,58
1B1-360 days past dia 240,21 136,60
More than 350 days past due 614,17 797,73
Total 1,E10.88 160768

The Company hes used a practical expedient for computing expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on & general
maitrix,

Expected Credit Loss [Ampunt in Lakhs)
Parficulars As at #s5 at
31 March 23 31 March 22

hole due : ™
Past dun by

0 - 80 Days .08 .55
41 - 180 days {1.57) 5
181-360 Days 380 & 10
Abave 360 Days §5.27 14358
Tobal 57.38 155,50

Balances with Banks, mutual funds and other financial assets:

For banks anly high rated banks/institutions are accepted. The Company haolds cash and cash equivalents with bhank, which ene having
highest safety ratings based on ratings published by various credit rating agencies. The Company considers that its cash and cash
equivalents have low credit sk bassd on external cred® ratings of the counterparties.

For other financial assets, the Company assesses and manages cred® risk bésed on reasonable and supportive forward loking
infarmation. The Company does not have significant credit sk exposure for these iems,

Reconciliation of loss alowance provision - Trade receivables
[Amount in Lakhs)

Pariculars As at As 8l
31 March 2023 21 March 20232
Crpining provesian 155.80 a4
fional provision made / [Reversal) (9B.52] 11.54
Bad debls wiillen off
Excess provision wrilien back
osing provisions R 155.00
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D. Liguidity Risk

Liquadity risk 5 the risk that the Compamy will not be able to sette or meet its obligations on Hme or al a ressonable price. The
Company’s treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well settiement managerent. The Company manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate surplus, banking facities and reserve bomowing facilities, by continuowsly monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows.

Thie wiorking capital position of the Company is given below:

{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars #As at .

31-Mar-23 F1-Mar-22
Cash and cash equivalents 1.04 16,68

Bank balance other than cash and cash

aciiiaterit 104 58 3.a2
Trade and ather recaivablos 2086,24 1,786.66
Inventony B45.16 3668
Other financial assets 24,30 afl 22
Total 284222 2.200.16

The table below providies detadls regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial lizbikties &s at 31 March 2023 and 31 March
2022,

{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars "“::';‘;a:?ﬁ 1-5 years More than 5 years Total

As at March 31, 2023

|Mon-dervative financial Eabilites
Borrowings 1,024.42 = s 1,024.42
Trade payables 1,340.47 - - 1,340.47
Other financia labilities 78.26 - - 78.26|

2,443.15 - = 2,443.15|

As at March 31, 2022

|ron-derivative financial liabiities
Bormowings 564.38| 2 . 564368
Trade payables 1,269.36 - - 1,28’9.35'
Other finandal liabdities 58.57 . - S8.57

1,882.31 - - 189231
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49 Critical accounting judgements and sources of estimation uncertainties

The preparation of the finandial statements requines the management to make judgerents, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenue, expenses, ascets and liabiities and the accompanying dsciosures induding the disclosure of contingent ligbilities, The
estimates and underying assumptions are reviewed on 2 ongoing bass. They are based on historical experience and other fackors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impect on the Company and that are believed to be reasomable under the drosmstances,
Rewisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate i revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Detalied informiation about each of these estimates, assumptions and judgements is included in relevant notes togethar with information about

(i} Useful lives of property, plant and equipment:

The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment &t the end of each reporting year, The financial effect of this
reassessment, 3ssUming the assets are held until the end of thesr estimated useful lives, is an increass/decresse the deprecistion expense in the
current financial year and futune years,

(ii} Fair value measurements and valuation procasses:

Some of the Company's assets and liebilities #ne measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company uses
approprizte valuation technigues for valuation. Thelr falr value i mieasured using valuation technigues inchading the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF)
model. The inputs to these mode’s are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair value,

{iii} Estimation of defined benesfit obligation:

The cost of defined benefits plan including other post employment benefits and the present value of such obligations are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuaried valuation imahies making various assumptions thet may differ from achual developments in the future, These
indlude the datermination of the discount rate, future salary incregses, mertality rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities involved in the
vaiuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit cbligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All the assumptions are
reviewed &t each reporting date.

v} Impairment of non-financial asseks:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for 2n asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amaunt is the
higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use, Tt is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from otfer assets or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
Its recoverabie amount, the assat s congidered impeired and is written down to it recovesable amount.

v} Impairment of financial assets:

The impairment provisions for financal edgats are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company used
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the Inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forwird looking estimates at the end of each reparting period.

vi) Lease
The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the
lease If it is ressonably certain to be exercised, o any periods covered by an cption to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be
exercised. The Company has several lease confracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies jdgement in
evaluating whether it is reasanably certain to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease, It considers all relevant factars that create an
econaimic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termingtion. After the commencament date, the Company reassesses the lease term if
there £ & sgnificant event or change in circumnstances that is within its control and affects its abi
renew or to terminate.
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o sddittonal information be the Fnassial stalments
Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enberprises Develapment act, 2008

= [Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars s at 31 March 2023 A5 a2 31 Manch 2022

Amount Amoet
{I) Prncipal amount remaining unpesd to Ay suppie” 2
the end aof the accounting yeer 5.20| 5553

11} Interest due thereon Femining ungald w-:n.-mur!l
&t the end of the acoounting year 1 -

[i§) The amount of interest peid Blong with the smounts
the paymest mace fo the suppler beyord the 1
] lay

] The amount of inferest dos and payabie for She year
0.5} 0.4

¥} The amoue! of interest accrued and resaining unpsid
g i of Rhia aroourling yase 1.8m) L.54]

iw] Thie amant of Turther inberest due and payeble even
in the SuitEsting yeEr, wnbl such dite when the Rfenest
i a5 above are actually 1B L=

Tt Due o Micro o Smel] Enerorises hare DEen OSbenTines o Bt fetent such parcties havse been identifind on the
bass of information collected by the management.

51  Ba'ances of cortain rads recehvabies, e pavebies and other financisd assets are subject to confimmation § reconcliation, [ any. The management
coes not expect any materiy difference alfecting the financial staerments on such mconciistion [/ adpements.

52  [Dnithe opinion of managemant, irade reosfarbies, Inans and other finencis 2ssets hewe 2 valun on reakzation s the endinary course of Busingis a7
kR agal o the amoust 8 which they ére sisied in the balance sheet. The provision for deprediation and all inown Eatilites i adeguate and nod
in excess of thi amount reasonabily slansd.

53  Code on Social Seourity. 20202 E
The Indian Parkament his apoeoeed the Code on Social Senursy, 2020 which wouid impac the oontributions by 2 Company iowants Providint
Furf and &m.mniﬁwdmm&mmmmmmwm#mm@ 200 n Mersember 13, 000,
anc hes it uggestions From stakehclders which sre under actve consideration by the Ministry. Tha Company will assess the impact and s
MNHMMWWNHmmWhMWMHmmmmmmm
dhmmhmmmmmwman e,

58  RecondlEton bebwesn the opening &nd diosing balances in the balerce chest for Rabifitiss and firancsl assets arising

Particulars Az at Hon-cash charge As at
1 March 2022 |Rcquisition | (Repayment)| 31 March 2023
{5700 e borowings TR 45004 1.024.42]
Particulars Ag at Eﬂﬂuﬂﬂmm. As at
1 March 2021 sition / (Repayment)| 31 March 2023
(S0 e borriwing 24700 [ITFIT) FTE

85  HMeagement has conducted the physicel verification of Inveniodies as on 2 Apefl 2033 and since there 15 no receipt B Esuss during the periad 1
Hipril 2023 to 2 April 2003, the inventonies heid on 2 Aprl 2033 s having thir saeme: vakoe #s.on 31 March 2023,

56 Ko subsecuent event has been oteereed which may requined 2m adjestment 10 thi saesent of finescial position,
57  Theompany has not done amy trensaction with companies struc off under gaction 245 Compeniss Aot 2010,
5B Thecharge on asset that to be repistened with ROC kas been registoned on time as inform by mansgemant,

59 A5 per the management and those chane with the Govermznce hes glven dedlamtion that the comparsy 5 not declarsd willful defaciier by any hank
or lrancial institulion o other lender.

60 Amounis fior the year ended and & st 31 Manch 2007 were sadited by soditoes Shabbie B Rity Sasociates LLP,

61 Prevdious yars” figuns Fave Baen mgrouped | searranged, whaniwr restissssny to confomm b the cumrent year's presenkation.

Signatures I nota 1 ko &1
Ini beres of our necort attached.

For SHABBIR B RITA ASSOCIATES LLP [For and on hehalf of the Boand of




